
 

 
Find out more online: 
www.worcestershire.gov.uk 

 
 

This document can be provided in alternative formats such as Large Print, an audio recording or 
Braille; it can also be emailed as a Microsoft Word attachment. Please contact Democratic 

Services on telephone number 01905 843579 or by emailing 
democraticServices@worcestershire.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Worcestershire County Council 

 
 

Agenda 
Standing Advisory Council on 
Religious Education 
 
Wednesday, 14 February 2018, 2.00 pm 
County Hall, Worcester 
 

 
 
 
 
 

mailto:democraticServices@worcestershire.gov.uk


 

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 

Agenda produced and published by Simon Mallinson, Head of Legal and Democratic Services, County Hall, 
Spetchley Road, Worcester WR5 2NP 
 
To obtain further information or a copy of this agenda contact, Deborah Dale, Member Engagement Officer 
on 01905 846282, ddale@worcestershire.gov.uk  
 
All the above reports and supporting information can be accessed via the Council’s website.  
 
Date of Issue: Tuesday 6

th
 February 2018  

 
 

Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 
Wednesday, 14 February 2018, 2.00 pm, County Hall, Worcester 
 
Membership:   

 
Group A (Representatives of Christian and other faiths) 
Mrs L Thorne (Ba'hai - Chairman), Mr G Bounds (Free Church Representative), Mrs T Khawaja 
(Muslim Representative), Mr J Loyal (Sikh Representative), Mrs C Parker (Methodist 
Representative) and Dr Y Stollard (Jewish Representative) 
 
Group B (Church of England Representatives) 
Ms S Boulter (Church of England), Mrs T Lister (Church of England) and Ms K Poole (Church 
of England) 
 
 
Group C (Representatives of Recognised Teachers Associations) 
Charlotte Betteridge (NASUWT) and Mr C Giles (Teacher Representative)  
 
Group D (Elected representatives of the Local Authority) 
Mr M E Jenkins (Worcestershire County Council) and Mr R C Lunn (Worcestershire County 
Council) 
 
Co-opted Representatives 
Ms E Hill (University of Worcester) and Ms A Hooper (Humanist Representative) 
 

Agenda 
 

Item No Subject Page No 
 

1  Apologies for Absence and Substitutions 
Apologies received from Ellie Hill (Karen Bubb attending) and Kerry 
Poole  
 

 

2  Confirmation of the Minutes 
For the meeting of 3

rd
 October 2017  

 

1 - 6 

3  Initial Teacher Education 
Presentation by Karen Bubb with undergraduate trainees from the 
University of Worcester  
 

 

4  SACRE CPD provision 
To receive a verbal update from Stephen Pett on Special schools, 
primary and secondary conferences as well as the Hub leader report. 

 

mailto:ddale@worcestershire.gov.uk


Item No Subject Page No 
 

 

5  Visits to Places of Worship 
Report by Tracy Lister  
 

7 - 12 

6  Church of England Schools Monitoring Reports 
Steph Boulter will provide the SIAMS report at the meeting 
 

 

7  SACRE sub group - Monitoring RE provision in schools 
Verbal update by Stephen Pett  
 

 

8  National Update 
Verbal update by Stephen Pett  
 

 

9  SACRE Development Plan 
To follow   
 

 

10  Feedback from Members 
A chance for Members to bring news or updates from their communities 
to share with SACRE  
 

 

11  Any Other Business 
 

 

12  Future Meeting Dates 
The meeting dates for 2018 are:  

 Tuesday 15
th
 May 2018  

 Tuesday 2
nd

 October 2018  
 

 

 



 
 

 
Date of Issue: <date>  

 
 Page No.   
 

1 

Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education 
Tuesday, 3 October 2017, County Hall, Worcester - 2.00 pm 
 
 Minutes  

Present:  Mrs Lindsay Thorne (Chairman), Mr Robin C Lunn (Vice-
Chairman), Ms Stephanie Boulter, Mr Chris Giles, Ms 
Ellie Hill, Mr M Jenkins, Mrs Tracy Lister, Mrs Christine 
Parker and Dr Yvonne Stollard. 
 

Also attended: Mr S Pett, Kate Griffiths 
 

  

598  Apologies for 
Absence and 
Substitutions 
 

Apologies for absence had been received from Charlotte 
Betteridge, Graham Bounds and Tasnim Khawaja. 
 

599  Confirmation of 
the Minutes 
 

The minutes of the meeting of 9 June 2017 were 
confirmed to be an accurate record of the meeting and 
were signed by the Chairman. 
 

600  SACRE 
Development 
Plan 
 

SACRE noted the development plan. The remaining 
agenda items would deal with the individual points from 
the plan. 
 
The Chairman commented that the Commission on RE 
quoted Nick Gibb as saying that Local Authorities would 
continue to receive funding for SACREs. 
 
 

601  Evidence of 
quality RE and 
SMSC in 
Worcestershire- 
an analysis of 
Ofsted reports 
 

Ellie Hill presented information regarding 'Monitoring 
standards' in the Development Plan. She had 
interrogated the Ofsted database for Worcestershire 
schools who had been inspected during 2016/17 and had 
either received a grading of 1(Outstanding) or 4 
(inadequate).  Key words which were searched for 
included terms such as 'religion', 'spirituality', 'belief' and 
'faith'. 
 
It was confirmed that the Ofsted Inspectors handbook 
stated that for schools of Religious Character the 
Inspectors should not comment on religious teaching; 
schools without a religious character must conform to the 
Locally Agreed Syllabus but nothing was recorded in the 
reports about the specific teaching of RE. 
 
The keywords highlighted some references in the reports 
to the teaching of SMSC rather than RE. All the reports 
were a general assessment of the school rather than a 

Page 1



 
 

 
 Page No.   
 

2 

judgement on the teaching of RE. It could therefore be 
assumed that the teaching of RE and SMSC was 
suitable. The inadequate schools had references to 
SMSC as well as the outstanding schools. 
 
Members agreed that it would be possible to monitor 
schools on a 3 year cycle but it was difficult to find out 
about the quality of RE from the Ofsted reports. It would 
be useful to note the schools with an inadequate rating 
and ensure they were offered help such as invitations to 
join hub support groups or attend conferences. The 
outstanding schools could be noted and asked to spread 
examples of effective teaching. 
 

RESOLVED that: 

a) Monitoring reports for Church of England 
Schools be considered at the next meeting 
(Ellie Hill and Steph Boulter); 

b) Schools rated inadequate to be invited to take 
part in meetings by Hub leaders, 

c) Ofsted reports to be reviewed on a regular 
basis. 

 

602  Visits to places 
of worship 
 

Tracy Lister distributed the list of Places of Worship. The 
list had been compiled by recommendations from 
teachers and delegates who had attended the RE Today 
Conference.  
 
SACRE members were asked to send any further details 
to Tracy by half term and Steph Boulter had a list of 'Dos 
and Don'ts' for schools visiting places of worship which 
would be useful for schools and could form part of the 
list. 
 
Chris Giles reported that students from South 
Bromsgrove school had visited places of worship in 
Birmingham; a Sunni Mosque, a Shia Mosque and a 
Church of England Church. The visit had been very 
positive and the students found it very enlightening to 
hear directly from people with a faith. 
 
The Chairman suggested in the future it would be good if 
a video could be made of the pupils' response to the visit 
and be made available on a website along with the list of 
places of Worship. 
 

RESOLVED: that 

a) Any further details about places of worship 
should be passed to Tracy Lister before half 
term (23 – 27 October), 

b) After half term the list is to be circulated to 

Page 2



 
 

 
 Page No.   
 

3 

SACRE members with a view to then being 
made available to Worcestershire Schools. 

 

603  Hub Leaders 
project 
 

Stephen Pett reported that progress was now being 
made on this project. Recruitment had started with the 
initial schools being invited to take part and ethics 
approval had been received from the University of 
Worcester which allowed the project to be recognised as 
a research project. 
 

RESOLVED that SACRE noted this update. 

 
 
 

604  Conferences 
 Primary Conferences 

 
The primary conference had taken place at the Pear Tree 
Inn on 19 June and had been a positive event although 
the number of attendees had been small. Tracy Lister 
reported that from a delegate's point of view the 
Conference had provided useful strategies and an 
opportunity to share good practice. 
 
Lat and Fiona from RE Today had already agreed to take 
part in a conference next year if SACRE agreed it would 
be a good idea. 
 

The Secondary Conference  

 
The conference organised by RE Today together with 
South Bromsgrove High School, entitled 'RE to Life', was 
held on 29 June and had gone well. 20 teachers from 
Worcestershire Schools had attended, along with a larger 
number of teachers from neighbouring counties. 
 

Future Conferences 

 
Worcester Cathedral were holding an Conference on 19 
October. 
 
Worcester University were planning an A level 
conference for March 2018. 
 
RE Today were proposing a special school conference 
be held on 27 March at the Buddhist Centre in Malvern. 
Schools from Herefordshire, Worcestershire and 
Gloucestershire would be invited. 
 

Page 3



 
 

 
 Page No.   
 

4 

RESOLVED: that 

a) SACRE agreed that RE Conferences were 
helpful for teachers and they supported the 
proposal that RE Today organise further 
conferences in 2018; and 
 

b) Relevant people and organisations needed to 
keep each other informed about upcoming 
conferences and Steph Boulter agreed to pass 
on information from the Church of England to 
RE Today, South Bromsgrove School and the 
University. 

 

605  National RE 
 

Stephen Pett distributed information from the 'State of the 
Nation' report. The report had been covered by the BBC 
who had checked the statistics. The report highlighted 
the lack of provision of RE in English schools and raised 
the pressure on the Government and the Department for 
Education to take some action. 
 
The report recommended that data should be published 
to allow SACREs to monitor provision in their local area 
more easily. Workforce data and GCSE data were 
distributed for schools in Worcestershire. The information 
suggested that a number of schools did little or no RE.  
 
It was recognised that some schools lacked specialist 
teachers and that some Head Teachers did not give RE 
due importance. SACRE members felt that something 
should be done to make schools fulfil their obligations 
with regards to RE, although it was recognised that 
Ofsted were reluctant to become a compliance 
organisation. 
 
Stephen Pett suggested that SACRE write to schools to 
enquire further about what RE they were providing, while 
pointing out the positives of RE and how it could add 
value to SMSC and the benefits it would bring to pupils 
and parents. 
 
The document 'RE for REal' showed the benefits of RE 
and would be discussed at the next meeting. 
 

RESOLVED that  

a) Stephen Pett would email members to arrange 
a sub group of SACRE to look at writing to 
schools regarding their RE provision; 

b) Ellie Hill would provide a precis of RE for REal 
for the next meeting, and 

c) An update would be received at the next 
meeting. 

Page 4



 
 

 
 Page No.   
 

5 

 

606  Feedback from 
Members 
 

None 
 

607  Any Other 
Business 
 

None 
 

608  Future Meeting 
Dates 
 

Dates 2018 
 

Wednesday 14 February at 2pm 
Tuesday 15 May at 2pm 
Tuesday 2 October at 2pm 
 
 

 
 
 
 The meeting ended at 4.10 pm 
 
 
 
 
 Chairman ……………………………………………. 
 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Places of Worship in and around Worcestershire 2017-18 

Faith Address/ Key Contact Additional Comments  

Worcestershire 

SACRE 

Point of Contact - TBA   

 

 

 

Christianity Worcester Cathedral 

Education Officer: Ben Smith 

By Telephone -  01905 732900   

By Fax -           01905 29119 

By email  -       schools@worcestercathedral.org.uk  

By letter -        to The Education Officer, 8 College Yard, 

Worcester, WR1 2LA  

 

Pilgrim’s Quest – life’s 

journeying in one day. 

Islam  Worcester Mosque 

Address: Tallow Hill, Worcester WR5 1JU 

Phone: 01905 20005 

 

 

Hour/hour and a half tour 

Take off shoes 

Visit shower area 

Girls cover heads  

Visit prayer room 

Listen to call to prayer 

Q&A session 

Islam Central Masjid Worcester 

Address: 86 Lowesmoor , WR1 2SB  

worcestercentralmasjid@gmail.com 

Ali Ahmed: 07540251527 

 

 

 

P
age 7



Islam Central Mosque – Redditch  

Address: Jinnah Rd, Redditch B98 7ER 

Phone: 01527 63834 

 

 

 

 

Christianity  St Martin’s Church 

PARISH & TEAM OFFICE AT ST MARTIN’S 

London Road, Worcester WR5 2ED 

Tel:  01905 358083 

E-mail:  teamoffice@tiscali.co.uk 

  

TEAM ADMINISTRATOR 

Hours: 

Weekdays Monday - Friday: 10.00am – 1.00pm 

 
 

Strong group of 

parishioners who support 

activities.  

Messy church 

Judaism BPS Birmingham Progressive Synagogue 

1 ROSELAND WAY, BIRMINGHAM B15 1HD 

0121 634 3888 

 

 

office @bps-pro-syn.co.uk 

 

 

OFFICE@BPSJUDAISM.COM 

 

 

Modern but very child 

friendly. 

Nr New St Station 

 

Men and women are 

allowed to sit together. 

 

 

No fee but donation 

welcome (£60) 

Hindusim Hindu Mandir 

Dudley Road East  

Tividale  

West Midlands B69 3DU  

England 

Phone 0121 544 2256 

Fax 0121 544 2257 

 

http://www.venkateswara.org.uk/Home.aspx 

 
 

Children very welcome. 

Served poppadoms and 

lemon rice.  

P
age 8



Sikhism Gurdwara 

Nishkam Civic Association | 

6 Soho Road, Handsworth 

Birmingham 

West Midlands 

B21 9BH 

Telephone: 0121 515 4229 

 

 

 

 
 

Children are able to sample 

foods, curry naan etc. 

Experience Prashad in 

Worship Hall 

Judaism Singers Hill Synagogue 

Birmingham 

United Kingdom 

B1 1HL 

Email: office@singershill.com 

Tel:  + 44 (0) 121 643 0884 

Fax: + 44 (0) 121 643 2273 

 

http://www.birminghamsynagogue.com/school-tours 

 

The visit will cover: 

The Torah Scrolls 

Jewish Traditions 

The Jewish Symbols 

Interactive tour - Q&A's & 

Much More 

 

 

 

 

 

Islam Birmingham Central Mosque 

180 Belgrave Middleway, 

Highgate, Birmingham 

United Kingdom B12 0XS 

Tel: 0121 440 5355 

Email: enquiries@centralmosque.org.uk 

Website: www.centralmosque.org.uk 

For Group Visits: 0121 440 5355 

 

Islamic Exhibition around the corner from the Mosque 

 

 

‘Youth guide was fantastic 

and made the visit personal 

to our children, who were 

buzzing’ 

P
age 9



Buddhism Amida Mandala Buddhist Temple 

34 Worcester Road 

Malvern 

WR14 4AA 

Tel 01684 572444 

 

 

Multi-faith HMP Long Lartin 

Kevin Downham, Managing Chaplain 

South Littleton, Evesham, Worcs. WR11 8TZ 

Tel: 01386 295302 

 

 

Multi-faith Worcestershire Interfaith Forum 

https://interfaithworcestershire.wordpress.com/contact/  

 

Contact through website.  

List of up and coming 

events 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 10

https://interfaithworcestershire.wordpress.com/contact/


 

List of Guest speakers to visit Schools in Worcester 

Faith Name/Contact Details Subjects/ activities on offer 

Christianity Emma Pettifer 

Children’s Officer 01905 732823  

epettifer@cofe-worcester.org.uk 

The Old Palace, Deansway, Worcester 

WR1 2JE 

Tel: 01905 20537 Fax: 01905 612302 

 

 

Creative Prayer in classrooms experience prayer 

through colours and fabrics 

Prayer Room in school – bubble tubes, plasma 

balls, mirror activities.  

Godly play  stories and activities 

Highly recommended. FOC for SLA schools. 

Buddhist/Hindu 

Workshop 

Sakhya Prema 

hinduworkshops@gmail.com 

 

 

 

 

Approx £200. 

Comes into school and sets up Hall as temple. 

Anti-racism  Show Racism the Red Card 

http://www.theredcard.org 

 

A team of ex professional footballers lead this workshop 

 

To help young people prepare to play an active role as 

citizens in an increasingly multi-cultural society.To 

enable young people to develop good relationships and 

respect the differences between people, regardless of 

their ethnicity, faith, culture or nationality. 

Islam Razwan Ul-Haq 

razwan@live.com 

www.ulhaq.com          Mobile 07773 963502 

Islamic Art, Calligraphy 

Handling difficult issues in the 7-11 RE classroom  

Child friendly  

£260 per day plus travel expenses 

iSing Pop Senior Area Manager (South)   Miz Porter 

Unit 4 & 5 

Cygnet Business Centre 

Worcester Road 

Hanley Swan    Worcs       WR8 0EA 

Email: miz@isingpop.com  

Phone: 07917 800082 

www.isingpop.org 
 

‘That was amazing – 

when can we do it 

again?’ 

A week long project. 

iSing Pop team comes into school Mon-Wed to 

teach pop songs based on Christian Values. The 

catchy songs are recorded on the Friday of that 

week, creating a whole school CD. 

Children perform to parents in a concert the 

following week. 

Sikhism Harkirat Singh  

07968143546 

mrharkiratsingh@sky.com 

www.northamptonsikhs.org 

‘Uplifting’ guest speaker.  

Child friendly explanations. 

 

P
age 11

mailto:epettifer@cofe-worcester.org.uk
http://www.theredcard.org/
mailto:razwan@live.com
http://www.ulhaq.com/


T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Confirmation of the Minutes
	5 Visits to Places of Worship

